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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO.: RFP15-2895P
TO BE OPENED: June 29, 2015
TITLE: Master Contract for Information Technology (IT) Services
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Penny Moon
Senior Administrative Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP 15-2895P

	1. 
	1
	Cover Page
	Q.
Would the state allow delivery of a sealed proposal to the physical address if the courier service doesn’t deliver to P.O. addresses?
A.
Yes, both the physical address and the mailing address are listed on the Cover Page so you can choose the delivery service that best fits your needs.

	2. 
	3
	Instructions to Offerors
	Q.
Our company is unable to deliver submissions to a mailing address with a P.O. Box. Would it be acceptable to mail the sealed proposal to the physical address as listed on the RFP? If not, are there any alternative options available?
A.
See response to Question 1.

	3. 
	3
	Instructions to Offerors
	Q.
If we are not claiming any information to be confidential or proprietary, may we just write a statement as such instead of providing the "Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality" form?
A.
If no materials are claimed to be confidential there is no need to even acknowledge the Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality. 

	4. 
	3
	1
	Q.
Please clarify the response requirements within Section 3. What narrative is required in response to section 3?
A.
There is no detailed response necessary for Section 3. Please replace page 3 with the attached revised page 3. 

	5. 
	3
	Instructions to Offerors
	Q.
“In addition to a detailed response to all requirements within Section 3, Appendix C, and Attachment A…” Do you have any preferred outline for us to respond to the requirements within Section 3? Could you please clarify the requirements? For such sections as 3.1 or 3.2, would a response “We read and acknowledge” good enough?
A.
Initialing the box on revised page 3 is sufficient acknowledgement. See response to Question 4.

	6. 
	3
	Last Checkbox
	Q.
By initialing the Instructions to Offerors page, are we correct in the assumption that we do not have to provide a written reply to Sections 1, 2, 3.1, 4, Appendix A and Appendix B?
A.
Correct.

	7. 
	3 and 13
	Instruction to Offerors and Section 3
	Q.
Instructions to Offerors states that “…a detailed response to all requirements within Section 3,..” is required in proposal response.  Section3 states “All subsections of Section 3 not listed in the "Instructions to Offerors" on page 3 require a response.  Restate the subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response.”

Please clarify what State is requiring. For example, in 3.3.1.3 Tier 2 Scoring Framework, all information requested including company experience, is specific to services being sought by an individual agency under an applicable SOW.  Should we state our general overall company experience instead, etc. or is the State asking for vendor to state our compliance with each Section 3 subsections?

A.
See response to Questions 4 and 5.

	8. 
	4
	Schedule of Events
	Q.
Would it be possible for the State to answer some questions before June 12?
A.
The State has provided answers to all questions submitted to date. 

	9. 
	5
	1.1
	Q.
Do vendors need to set an hourly rate for RFP15-2895P?  If so, how?  Or is the hourly rate set in the proposal developed for each individual CEP?

A.
Rates/cost and staff qualifications will not be part of Tier One and thus not included in this RFP.  They will be included in Tier Two of the process.

	10. 
	5
	1.1.1.1 Experience and References
	Q.
This paragraph mentioned “Appendices C and S”.  Is there appendices S?

A.
There is no Appendix S. This sentence is corrected to read: “To clarify what constitutes company experience or project experience which the offeror is to submit as part of this RFP response (primarily in Section 4 and Appendix C Appendices C and S):”

	11. 
	5
	1.1.1.2
	Q.
We were selected as preferred vendors for three categories: Distributed Application Services, IT Staff Augmentation and QA Services in 2011. Do we need to re-apply to this RFP as per Tier One process to be in the IT Application Services Vendor Roster? We have also responded to several CEPS as part of this Vendor Roster membership.

A.
Yes a new proposal is required. The contracts resulting from this RFP effort will replace the existing Master Contract for IT Services. The existing contract expiring on June 30, 2016 will have run the ten years allowed by statute and must therefore be replaced.  

	12. 
	5
	1.1.1.3 Contractor Reviews
	Q.
Within the year time span, if there were no CEP’s released that the Vendor has the resources/qualifications for, will the State give the Vendor an opportunity to discuss with the State the Vendor’s reasons for not applying to CEPs before being removed from the prequalified roster? In the past Vendors would reply to listed CEPs with a response of no proposal and state a reason they are not submitting a proposal, going forward how will the State allow Vendors to submit a Notice of No Proposal?
A.
No qualified vendors will later be disqualified for inactivity without due process.  Issues related to posted CEPs may be brought to the attention of the State’s Contract Manager at any time for clarification/resolution.

	13. 
	5
	1.1.1.3
	Q.
“If a contractor has not responded to CEP opportunities in the previous year, it may not be offered a renewal, which will result in removal from the prequalified roster.”

If a contractor is currently delivering on an existing CEP, will that be sufficient to allow that contractor to remain on the prequalified roster even if that contractor does not respond to any CEPs in the course of a given year?

A.
Yes.

	14. 
	5
	1.1.1.3
	Q.
When is Tier Two of the process issuance of a Contractor Engagement Proposal (CEP) start?

A.
The CEP process (Tier Two) starts when a state agency identifies a project and chooses to use the Master Contract for IT Services as the contracting vehicle.

	15. 
	6
	1.6
	Q.
May we get a chance to ask additional questions referring to the answers posted towards this round of questions?
A.
The State has made a concerted effort to answer all questions well ahead of the scheduled date. Therefore, we will allow a second round of questions. Additional questions will be accepted until close of business on June 8, 2015.

	16. 
	7
	1.6.3
	Q.
For any resulting “Acknowledgments” of addenda, does the Acknowledgement have to be signed or initialed by a person in our firm who is authorized to bind our firm?
A.
The addendum can be signed by the person submitting the proposal.

	17. 
	7
	1.6.3
	Q.
If required, after receipt of Addendums, are we to include all the pages of the addendum in our proposal or just the pages on which signature is required?
A.
A signed Addendum page 1 is all that is required.

	18. 
	7
	1.7
	Q.
I was informed that our staff could not attend the pre-proposal conference call conducted on May 27 at 11:30 a.m. Apparently when attempting to call in, all four numbers provided were over full and we were not allowed into the call. We would like to know what was discussed and whether or not it was recorded?
A.
The pre-proposal conference was not recorded. The topics discussed were the elimination of the service categories and how that would impact Tier One and Tier Two selections; the RFP timelines; the fact that no changes will be allowed to the contract document after the contractors have been selected; and general RFP overview. All issues discussed are addressed in this Addendum.

	19. 
	7
	1.8.1
	Q.
Because of the nature of services we propose, the laws and regulations that govern the provision of those services, and our contractual obligations to third-party information providers, we require final contracts to contain at a minimum our standard terms & conditions (or terms & conditions substantially similar to them), which are attached separately for reference. We would undertake to make good faith efforts to negotiate modifications in order to reach a fair agreement, satisfactory to both parties.

Please advise if this is acceptable to the State. If so, please advise if our terms and conditions would be considered at this stage of the procurement (Tier One), or during the ordering agency’s selection procedure (Tier Two).

A.
The State is anticipating executing this Master Contract with 150+ separate contractors. This one Master Contract will govern the relationship between the State and the contractors and therefore must be static for all parties. The State will not negotiate separate contracts nor will the State execute separate terms and conditions at Tier One or Tier Two award. However, during the Tier Two process the State may consider special conditions specific to the needs of the project, e.g. background check, special security, etc., which will be added to the Statement of Work. If a statement of work has terms and conditions that conflict with the Master Contract for IT Services’ terms and conditions, the Master Contract’s terms and conditions govern.

	20. 
	7
	1.8.2
	Q.
We request that, for the reasons stated above, this section be modified as follows:
This RFP and any addenda, the offeror's RFP response, including any amendments, Offeror’s Terms & Conditions, a best and final offer (if any), and any clarification question responses shall be incorporated by reference in any resulting contract.

A.
The State will not modify Section 1.8.2.

	21. 
	7
	1.8.3
	Q.
We interpret this section to mean that by submitting a response to the RFP, the offeror would comply with the RFP specifications and requirements as modified by the State pursuant to RFP Section 1.6.1. Please confirm.
A.
Confirmed.

	22. 
	7 & RFP Cover page
	1.8.4

& RFP Cover page of RFP
	Q.
1.8.4 Offeror’s signature on the RFP cover page– will the State allow a copy of the ink signature of the vendor individual authorized to bind our firm? Or does the State require an original ink signature?
A.
A copy of the signature is fine. 

	23. 
	7
	1.9.1
	Q.
Are offerors to return sections of the RFP as their proposal responses; for example return Instructions to Offerors even though no response is required? Is the proposal to be organized exactly as the RFP (Instructions to Offerors, Schedule of Events, Section 1: Introduction and Instructions, etc.)?
A.
Proposals should be organized to into sections that follow the format of the RFP. This requires a signed cover page, initialed page 3, signed addenda, properly completed Appendix C for two projects, and properly completed Attachment A for each project.

	24. 
	7
	1.9.1
	Q.
Will you accept our proposal in 3-ring binders, with the appropriate tabbed dividers?
A.
Yes, this is fine for the paper copies.

	25. 
	7
	1.9.1 Organization of Proposal
	Q.
The RFP requires that “Offerors must organize their proposal into sections that follow the format of this RFP”. Could you please provide the details of proposal content and organization?
A.
See response to Question 23.

	26. 
	7
	1.9.1 – Organization of proposal
	Q.
Is there page limit for the proposal?
A.
No.

	27. 
	7
	Section 1.9.1

Section 1.8.2
	Q.
I am confused by the last two (2) sentences at the very end of page 7 in the RFP: “All subsections not listed in the “Instructions or Offerors” on page 3 require a response. Restate the section/subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response.”
Question: Do the above 2 sentences mean that the Vendors are to list all the RFP text from all the sections and subsections in our bid responses, and then add our written response immediately after each section/subsection? 

E.g., are we to put the following into our bid responses?

1.8.2 Resulting contract. This RPF and any addenda, the offeror’s RFP response, including any amendments, a best and final offer (if any), and any clarification question responses shall be incorporated by reference in any resulting contract.

Our response shall be: Our firm agrees to the above statement.
A.
Please delete the last two sentences on the bottom of page 7 as they do not apply to this RFP. By initialing the items listed in the box at the bottom of page 3 (revised version attached), the offeror is acknowledging all items within the specified sections and appendices. See response to Question 23.

	28. 
	7
	1.9.1 Organization of Proposal
	Q.
Does the state want Vendors to keep the full text under each section/sub-section or would the State like the section/sub-section number and title only?  For example - keeping only the section number and title:

3.3.1.3  Tier Two Scoring Framework -  Vendors response text directly after number and section title.
A.
See response to Questions 4 and 5.

	29. 
	8
	1.9.1
	Q.
Will our proposal receive fewer points if it our proposal copies are single sided?
A.
No.

	30. 
	8
	1.9.1
	Q.
Request you to you please let us know the detailed format of the Proposal that you are expecting from us.
A.
See response to Question 23.

	31. 
	8
	1.9.3
	Q.
What do you mean by multiple proposals? Do you mean we may submit 1 proposal for several or all of the “Quote Group Items”?
A.
If a company wishes to provide more than one proposal they are free to do so and each proposal will be considered independently. For instance, a company may choose to submit a second proposal with two entirely different projects and references (Appendix C and Attachment A).

	32. 
	8
	1.9.3
	Q.
If the offeror would like to respond to multiple areas of interest (i.e. Analysis, Design & Planning Services-1102, and Project Management Services-1115), should the offeror submit a separate proposal for each area since the project experience/references maximum is limited to two per proposal?
A.
See response to Question 50.

	33. 
	8
	1.9.3
	Q.
If the offeror is required to submit a separate proposal for each area of interest (i.e. Analysis, Design & Planning Services-1102, and Project Management Services-1115), are they required to submit two separate project examples/references for each proposal? Can the same project example/reference be used in multiple proposals?
A.
See response to Question 50.

	34. 
	8
	1.9.3
	Q.
Can the State of Montana please provide the official list of service areas that can be bid upon for this RFP?
A.
See response to Question 50.

	35. 
	8
	1.9.4. Copies Required and Deadline for Receipt of Proposals
	Q.
Does the State expect to have one original proposal and one print copy in the same binder or different binder?
A.
Each copy of the proposal (original and print copy) should be bound separately, however binding can be accomplished with a staple or binding clip, a binder is not necessary. 

	36. 
	8
	1.9.4. Copies Required and Deadline for Receipt of Proposals
	Q.
Is it correct that: It is required that the Offerors submit two electronic copies of the original proposal on separate CD or USB. In case there are confidential materials in the proposal, Offerors need to submit the proposal with confidential information in 01 more separate CD or USD.
A.
Yes, this is correct.

	37. 
	8
	1.9.4
	Q.
The section requires Offerors to submit, among other things, two electronic copies of their proposal. In addition, if any confidential materials are included, they must be “submitted on separate CD or USB flash drives.” Please clarify. Should the initial two electronic copies contain only redacted proposals that exclude confidential content, with the third electronic copy including only the confidential content? Or Should the two initial electronic copies include all confidential content, with the third electronic copy including only a redacted version that excludes confidential content.

A.
The State is not anticipating the need for confidential materials to be submitted for this RFP. The project information submitted should be able to be general enough as to negate the need for materials meeting the Montana Trade Secret Act. However, if materials of this nature are submitted the State is requiring two electronic devices each with one complete redacted proposal and two electronic devices with the confidential materials.

	38. 
	9
	2.3.2
	Q.
This section requires confidential information be separated from the rest of the proposal. Please elaborate. Would it suffice to include confidential information in the same binder as the rest of the proposal but in its own separate tabbed section of the document?

A.
Yes.

	39. 
	9
	2.3.2 Procurement Officer Review of Proposals
	Q.
Link for “Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality" form does not work.
A.
This link works fine from our computers. The web address is http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/GSDDocuments.aspx. 

	40. 
	9
	2.4.1
	Q.
Should the following be in this RFP? (2) “the submitted price is found to be excessive or inadequate as measured by the RFP Criteria”
A.
You are correct, this sentence does not apply to this RFP, please delete it.

	41. 
	10
	2.4.3
	Q.
Evaluation of Proposals.   .  In scoring against stated criteria, the evaluator/evaluation committee may consider such factors as accepted industry standards and a comparative evaluation of other proposals in terms of differing price and quality.

Since no pricing is required under this RFP how prices can be compared?

A.
Price is not a being considered in this RFP so there will be no comparison.

	42. 
	11
	2.7
	Q.
This section provides that the offeror must request exceptions to State IT policies and standards in accordance with Section 1.6 of this RFP.  Since the applicability of State IT policies and standards could vary depending on the nature of the Tier Two project that a contractor responds to, we believe that it would be difficult during the Tier One phase to identify specific concerns that offerors might have about complying with Montana’s IT policies.  Once a contractor is responding to a Tier Two project, will the contractor have the ability to include an exception in its Tier Two response to address concerns about a State IT policy that is relevant to the specific project?
A.
Yes. See response to Question 19.

	43. 
	11 to 12
	2.7
	Q.
We have a strong commitment to security and privacy, and strive to comply with the IT strategic plans, policies, and standards based on industry best practices. Our technology infrastructure is based on the ISO 27002 framework, which is in close alignment with the State’s requirement for NIST 800. We will work closely with the State on each solution or product offering to determine how it may need to be addressed to fit the State’s applicable IT policies and standards. In addition, we would be happy to provide upon request an independent audit report – the SSA16 SOC2 report – demonstrating our understanding of compliance with most security standards. The report’s availability depends on the specific solution the State would purchase. Please advise on the State’s willingness to accept this approach in response to RFP Section 2.7.
A.
Compliance with applicable State IT Policies and Standards can be addressed specific to each Statement of Work/CEP in the Tier II.  The intent of identifying these in Section 2.7 of the RFP is simply to reveal their existence and the general nature relating to our IT environment.  

	44. 
	13
	Section 3 – Scope of Services
	Q.
Could you please explain how offerors should response to all subsections of Section 3 not listed in the "Instructions to Offerors" on page 3?
A.
See response to Questions 4 and 5.

	45. 
	13
	3
	Q.
This section states that “all subsections of Section 3 not listed in the “Instructions to Offerors” on page 3 require a response. Restate the subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response.” It does not appear that anything in Section 3 requires a response. Please clarify.
A.
See response to Questions 4 and 5.

	46. 
	13
	3
	Q.
“All subsections of Section 3 not listed in the "Instructions to Offerors" on page 3 require a response.  Restate the subsection number and the text immediately prior to your written response.”  Section 3 of this RFP is comprised of mostly informational text, rather than specified requirements.  Nothing in this Section 3 is listed in the “Instructions to Offerors.”  Please clarify what, in addition to addressing the requirements of Appendix C and Attachment A, and providing written acknowledgement of the contractual / procurement terms & conditions, that the state is looking for in a vendor’s Response.
A.
See response to Questions 4 and 5.

	47. 
	13
	Sentence before 3.1
	Q.
Are the vendors supposed to add each RFP section and subsection text to our Bid response, and then add text of our answer or agreement?
A.
See response to Questions 4 and 5.

	48. 
	13
	3
	Q.
Does each section and subsection under Section 3 need to be addressed in the proposal?
A.
See response to Questions 4 and 5.

	49. 
	13
	3
	Q.
Would just a single line sentence acknowledging our acceptance of the entire Section 3 be acceptable?
A.
See response to Questions 4 and 5.

	50. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
Question: Where do I find the text description of the following “quote groups”? The last MSA RFP released 1-25-2013 had descriptions of the “Service Categories”. But the current RFP does not even mention the “Quote Groups” except in the 5-15-15 email I received from the State of Montana notifying me of the RFP. 

Quote Group--Quote Group Item (ID):

Computing Services--Advisory & Research Services (1101)
Computing Services--Analysis, Design & Planning Services (1102)
Computing Services--Disaster Recovery & Business Continuity Services (1103)
Computing Services--Document Management & Imaging Services (1104)
Computing Services--GIS Services (1105)
Computing Services--Internet & Electronic Commerce Services (1106)
Computing Services--IT Training Services (1107)
Computing Services--Mainframe Analysis & Programming (1108)
Computing Services--Maintenance Services (1109)
Computing Services--Microcomputer Analysis & Programming (1110)
Computing Services--Mid-tier Analysis & Programming (1111)
Computing Services--Network Services (1112)
Computing Services--Oracle Analysis & Programming (1113)
Computing Services--PeopleSoft Analysis & Programming (1114)
Computing Services--Project Management Services (1115)
Computing Services--Quality Assurance Service (1116)

A.
The State’s intention is to establish this prequalified list of contractors based on very general Information Technology experience rather than specific service categories as has been done in the past. The State’s experience has been that the projects generally span several service categories as does the contractors’ expertise, so the service categories have not been as helpful as originally anticipated. Therefore there are no specific categories identified for this RFP effort. Offerors will be selected based on the general IT experience identified in the responses to Appendix C and Attachment A as outlined in RFP Section 4.

	51. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
Question: why does not the RFP have a list of the Quote Group categories?
A.
See response to Question 50.

	52. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
Is the Document Management category exclusively Filenet? Can vendors with document management experience but no Filenet experience qualify?
A.
There is no longer a Document Management category. Yes, offerors without Filenet experience can qualify for this Master Contract.

	53. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
Question: can the State tell the Vendors the amount of spend per fiscal year for the last several years per each of the “Quote Group” categories 1101 through 1116?
A.
The annual spend amounts are listed on page 13, Section 3.2. The State does not have this information broken out per quote group or service category.

	54. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
Two years ago, when we were applying for additional service categories, I think we had over 400 pages of work examples. It had its own e-ring binder. For this RFP you’re just asking for one example per project. So, I can just submit, say, a single business process diagram for a project? And not get penalized or scored lower? (I hate to kill another tree if I don’t have to.)
A.
Simplification is our intent.  Service Categories have been eliminated, thus removing a requirement to provide project examples for each category.  The current requirement, to provide two IT service project examples, will be scored based on the criteria outlined on page 17 of the RFP (Point Distribution).  A single business process diagram would be insufficient, when scored against these factors (however, it could be an applicable project ‘Deliverable,’ which is worth 10% of the possible points).  

	55. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
We are considering submitting a proposal to renew our master contract with the State of Montana. I’m hoping you can answer a couple of questions related to the GIS category.

Computing Services--GIS Services (1105)
1.    Can you provide a dollar amount of GIS work contracted in the last master contract period (2013-2015)?

2.    Can you provide a list of likely upcoming projects in this service area for the next master contract period?
A.
There was no GIS work contracted via this contract during 2013-2015.  No estimates of future use of this contract are available.  Please note the elimination of Service Categories.  Please note RFP page 22, under Non-Exclusive Contract, that the State does not guarantee any usage.  

	56. 
	13
	3.2 Overview
	Q.
How many incumbents and who they are? Is there any link we can access to the currently approved vendors' submitted proposals and contracts?

A.
There are currently 128 contractors on the Master Contract for IT Services. The individual proposals and contracts are not available on the website.

	57. 
	13
	3.2 Overview
	Q.
Which agencies have been using the last Master Contract for IT Services the most?

A.
Of the 36 State agencies listed at http://mt.gov/govt/agencylisting.mcpx, 22 have used the Master Contract for IT Services since the last RFP, to add vendors, was completed in 2013.  Larger agencies and those which receive a portion of their funding from Federal sources, e.g. Public Health and Human Services, Transportation, and Administration (which includes the State IT Services Division), have used this contract the most.  

	58. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
I see awards will be made to offerors with a score of at least 70%. If the vendor only responds to a few of the “Quote Group Items”, is there still a possibility of scoring 70%?
A.
There are no quote group requirements in this RFP, so the there is definitely a possibility of scoring 70%.

	59. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
In the past Vendors needed to apply for each Services Category that Vendors had the resources and qualifications to provide services.   Do Vendors need to submit a separate proposal for each CEP Services Category?  If so, what are the Service Categories?
A.
See response to Question 50.

	60. 
	13
	3.2
	Q.
Our company was selected as a State IT Staffing Augmentation Services vendor on the existing IT Services contract. The latest RFP solicitation does not include a separate section to propose these types IT Services. Does the State plan on opening an RFP/contract for this type IT services? If not, will vendors specializing in this service segment be able to qualify for selection since RFP evaluation scoring in Section 4 is project-based?
A.
See response to Question 50.

	61. 
	13
	3.3 Scope
	Q.
How many vendors does the State plan to award?

A.
The State will offer contracts to all vendors who score within 70% of the highest scoring offeror.

	62. 
	13
	3.3 Scope
	Q.
Is the statewide program resulting from this RFP mandatory for all state agencies? Does the State have any other vehicles to hire IT contractors?

A.
The Master Contract for IT Services is not a mandatory use contract. Agencies must follow State procurement procedures to engage contractors outside of the Master IT Contract.

	63. 
	13
	3.3 Scope
	Q.
Does this RFP include both IT staff augmentation services and deliverable based projects? If yes, what is the % budget for each?
A.
Yes, both IT staff augmentation services and deliverable based projects are included. The budget is not set at this point, as agencies identify a specific project need they will develop an appropriate budget estimate.

	64. 
	13
	3.3.1.1
	Q.
We understand if a vendor has to respond to this RFP 15-2895P, a response to Tier-One is being requested. Is that enough now?
A.
Yes.

	65. 
	13
	3.3.1.2 Tier 2
	Q.
“For projects with an estimated cost of between $5,000 and $25,000, agency personnel must solicit responses from at least three prequalified Contractors before making a selection.” Is the $25,000 limit applied for the whole contract which includes renewals or extensions? What if an agency splits the contract into different pieces which are less than $25,000/each? Does the State have any way to prevent that case?
A.
The cost estimate must be based on the total project cost, including any anticipated renewals. Agencies are not allowed to artificially divide projects in the manner described per Administrative Rules of Montana 2.5.603 (5) which states: Procurements shall not be artificially divided or sequenced to avoid using the other source selection methods set forth in Title 18, chapter 4, MCA.

	66. 
	13
	3.3.1.2
	Q.
Where is the expected location of project execution as part of Tier-Two? Can it be proposed from offshore (outside USA)-a cost effective proposition, offsite (in USA) or is it in Helena?
A.
The location(s) of performance is established for each project on a case-by-case basis.  Historical data: State offices + partial off-site/remote: 60% / Exclusively State offices (on-site): 30% / Remote/Off-site: 10% / Offshore: Rare/None.

	67. 
	13
	3.3.1.2
	Q.
In the Tier-Two process will shortlisted candidates be required to appear in face to face interviews?
A.
No.  Interview arrangements vary by the preference/availability of the candidates.  In-person is almost always an option (at the candidate’s expense), however, the majority of interviews have been conducted via phone or online.

	68. 
	13
	3.3.1.2
	Q.
During the Tier Two phase will contractors have an opportunity to negotiate terms and conditions that modify the terms and conditions of the Tier One contract (Appendices A and B), with respect to the specific Tier Two project?
A.
No. See response to Question 19.

	69. 
	14
	3.3.1.3
	Q.
TRG is on the Master Contract for IT Staff Augmentation.  Does Montana users in any of the groups listed in this RFP (Mainframe Analysis & Programming as an example) ever try to procure contract technical staffing on a time & materials basis (like staff augmentation) or do the users in these groups procure their IT staffing on a project basis (fixed price)?
A.
The State’s preference is to contract projects on a firm fixed price basis. It is possible for agencies to procure a project using a time and materials basis, however, per 18-4-311 MCA the agency must determine in writing that the contractor’s accounting system will permit timely development of all necessary cost data and that the system is adequate to allocate costs in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

	70. 
	14
	3.3.2 Subcontracting
	Q.
How do you identify the majority of the work to be completed under the master contract by the subcontractor? Do you have criteria on budget or % workload?
A.
It is determined via a comparison of the requirements (SOW or Job Description, for staff augmentations) to the CEP response/proposal. 

	71. 
	14
	3.3.2
	Q.
Do potential subcontractors need to be approved during the Tier One phase?  If so, what information regarding subcontractors should be provided in response to this RFP?
A.
Subcontractors must be identified during the Tier Two process.

	72. 
	14
	3.3.2
	Q.
When responding to a Tier Two opportunity does the contractor need to disclose in its response information about potential subcontractors, or can that information be provided after award of the Tier Two agreement but prior to starting work?
A.
If the Contractor knows that it will be using subcontractors when submitting a Tier Two response, the subcontractor information must be disclosed in the response. If after a SOW has been awarded the Contractor identifies subcontractors for the project the State must be given adequate notice to review the subcontractors’ roles in the project and qualifications. The State reserves the right to deny the use of subcontractors.

	73. 
	14
	3.3.2
	Q.
Could you expand further on how the State will make the determination of “significant portion”? Is that done in conjunction with the contracting agency, and does it apply if the subcontractor is also an approved vendor?
A.
See answer to Question #70.  Subcontractors are not required to be qualified on this contract, however, if they are – the ‘significant portion’ requirement still applies, i.e. the (prime) contractor given the award ‘will complete a significant portion of the project.’ 

	74. 
	16
	Section 4
	Q.
Will the State only score Vendors on “Project Experience” and “References”?
A.
Yes.

	75. 
	16
	Section 4
	Q.
May vendors select to provide Project Experience and References for select “Computing Services” items? E.g., may the Vendors provide Project Experience and References to only #1101, #1110 and #1111 as an example?
A.
Yes.

	76. 
	16
	4
	Q.
In section 4.1 it states, “…a total number of 10,000 points”.  The scoring guide states that there will be 3 points for Exceeds Requirements”, etc.  It doesn’t seem like this amount of points will get to 10,000.  For clarification please elaborate more how each section in the Point Distribution table will get scored.
A.
The points will be distributed based on the percent value assigned to each item. Attached is an example evaluation sheet demonstrating how the points will be calculated.

	77. 
	17
	4.2
	Q.
The scoring system favors large companies.  For example how will a large project (5-10 people involved), running for multiple years, with a bigger budget ($500,000 - $1,000,000) score compared to a small project that involves one person, over the course of several months, costing $10,000 to $20,000?  These projects are orders of magnitude below the big project.  So how will a small shop meet the 70% of the highest score?
A.
Past experience has shown that 75% of applicant companies have qualified for this contract; the prominent reason the 25% were unsuccessful, was poor response(s) to the RFP, not lack of experience or skills. Two IT service project examples, well written (in response to the scoring criteria on page 17 of the RFP) and two references from satisfied clients – will qualify an applicant, regardless of whether it is a sole proprietorship or a global IT services provider (we have both, among the 128 companies currently under contract).    

	78. 
	18
	Appendix A
	Q.
Please confirm that no response is required in response to Appendix A.
A.
Confirmed, the only response required is an initialed revised page 3.

	79. 
	18
	Appendix A
	Q.
Because of the nature of services we propose, the laws and regulations that govern the provision of those services, and our contractual obligations to third-party information providers, we require final contracts to contain at a minimum our standard terms & conditions (or terms & conditions substantially similar to them), which are attached separately for reference. We would undertake to make good faith efforts to negotiate modifications in order to reach a fair agreement, satisfactory to both parties.
Please advise if this is acceptable to the State. If so, please advise if our terms and conditions would be considered at this stage of the procurement (Tier One), or during the ordering agency’s selection procedure (Tier Two).

A.
See response to Question 19.

	80. 
	19
	Appendix B
	Q.
Please confirm that no response is required in response to Appendix B.
A.
Confirmed, the only response required is an initialed page 3 (revised page 3 attached).

	81. 
	19
	Appendix B: Contract
	Q.
Are the vendors to include all the Text from “Appendix B: Contract” in our bid response?
A.
See response to Question 80.

	82. 
	19
	Appendix B
	Q.
Contract is for reference and not to be submitted with the response to this RFP?
A.
See response to Question 80.

	83. 
	19
	Appendix B
	Q.
Also applying to the contract – If I understood correctly, the contract does not have to have a binding signature at the time of the RFP response? That will be done after a successful bid through the RFP?

Other signatures and initials on the cover sheet, check list, reference forms, etc. will be required at time of submission?
A.
The contract does not have to be signed at time of RFP submission. The contracts will be signed after evaluation and selections have been made. The RFP cover sheet, addenda, and reference forms require signatures and page 3 requires initials at time of proposal submittal.

	84. 
	19
	Appendix B
	Q.
Several contractual terms and conditions may need modification to fit the work and circumstances of a particular project procured under this Master Agreement. For example Section 3.1.3 of Appendix B – Contract (RFP page 20) says the project price will be “total project cost, and/or the cost per milestone.” That price formula will likely be different depending on the specific project. Will all contract terms and conditions be negotiable on a project by project basis?

A.
The State agrees to revise Project Cost as follows “ The Contractor must provide project costs as specified in the CEP.” All changes to the terms or conditions of the Master Contract will be addressed in addenda issued by June 12, 2015. No further negotiation will be allowed. 

	85. 
	19
	Appendix B
	Q.
Some terms in Appendix B – Contract envision the possibility of a dispute between the contractor and the State. For example, Section 5.2 (RFP page 20) discusses a possible withhold of payment but no dispute resolution process to address this circumstance. Would the State provide a dispute resolution provision?

A.
The State is considering the addition of a dispute resolution clause and will address this question more fully by June 12, 2015.

	86. 
	20
	Appendix B, Section 3.2
	Q.
Please add to Section 3.2 that the rights and obligations of the Contractor may be, in whole or in part, exercised or fulfilled by its subsidiaries and affiliates.
A.
The State will not modify this clause.

	87. 
	20
	Appendix B, Section 3.3.1
	Q.
Please add the following bullet:
· Agency shall have to certify, in writing, to its permissible use(s) of the Contractor’s supplied services and complete a separate form(s) at the time the Ordering Agency requests services from Contractor.

A.
When a contractor is selected resulting from a CEP effort, a Statement of Work will be executed between the agency and the contractor. No separate forms or terms and conditions will be allowed, therefore the State does not agree to add this bullet.

	88. 
	21
	Appendix B, Section 4.1
	Q.
Please add the following to the end of the first sentence:
; provided, however, that the State accepts all information “AS IS”. State acknowledges and agrees that the Contractor obtains its data from third party sources, which may or may not be completely thorough and accurate, and that State shall not rely on Contractor for the accuracy or completeness of information supplied through the Contractor Services. Without limiting the foregoing, the criminal record data that may be provided as part of the Contractor Services may include records that have been expunged, sealed, or otherwise have become inaccessible to the public since the date on which the data was last updated or collected. State understands that State may be restricted from accessing certain Contractor Services which may be otherwise available. Contractor reserves the right to add materials and features to, and to discontinue offering any of the materials and features that are currently a part of, the Contractor Services. In the event that Contractor discontinues a material portion of the materials and features that State regularly uses in the ordinary course of its business, and such materials and features are part of a flat fee subscription plan to which State has subscribed, Contractor will, at State’s option, issue a prorated credit to State’s account.

A.
This language is too specific to be included in the Master Contract, however the State may consider adding parts of this to specific Statements of Work, if applicable. See response to Question 19.

	89. 
	21
	Appendix B, Section 4.2
	Q.
Please delete the following:
; (ii) the media upon which the software is furnished will be free from defects in materials and workmanship under normal use and service.

A.
The State will not modify this clause.

	90. 
	22
	Appendix B, Section 5.2
	Q.
Please delete this section in its entirety as we offer a restricted license to use our services and any data contained therein pursuant to flat-fee subscription plans to which the State will subscribe.  As a result, we will be providing access to existing services, and will not be subject to milestones.
A.
The State does not agree to delete this subsection. See response to Question 84.

	91. 
	22
	Appendix B, Section 8.1
	Q.
We request the following be added after the first sentence:
Such access to Contractor’s records shall be given upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Contract, subject to execution of a separate, non-disclosure confidentiality agreement between the parties and the Contractor’s security policies, and shall take place at the Contractor’s premises. No documents shall be allowed to be copied or removed from the Contractor’s premises.

A.
The State agrees to add “Such access to Contractor’s records shall be given upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Contractor.”

	92. 
	22
	Appendix B, Section 8.2
	Q.
This section requires an eight year retention period. Some of the services we’d supply under the contract would involve the secure transfer of personally identifiable information to support an agency’s investigative research efforts. For purposes of these services, please change Section 8.2 as follows: “Contractor shall create and retain all records supporting the services provided for a period of two years and 60 days for non-FCRA data and seven years for FCRA data.” These are guidelines we established with the Federal Trade Commission as part of our comprehensive information security program.
A.
The State does not agree to this change.

	93. 
	23
	Appendix B, Section 9
	Q.
Please change this section to reflect that the rights and obligations of the Contractor may be, in whole or in part, exercised or fulfilled by its subsidiaries and affiliates.
A.
The State does not agree to this change.

	94. 
	23
	Appendix B, Section 9
	Q.
Does the State’s process remain the same as it has been regarding vendor company name changes and change of ownership? This has happened a couple of times with my company and I believe we only needed to fill out a name change document for you.
A.
The documents required are dependent on the nature of the situation. When a company changes ownership notice must immediately be sent to the State Contract Manager. If, after verifying the qualifications of the new company, the State agrees to the contract transfer a Novation Agreement is required. If the company simply changes its name and the TIN remains unchanged less paperwork is required. 

	95. 
	23
	Appendix B, Section 10.1
	Q.
Please revise this section as follows:
Contractor agrees to protect, defend, and save the State, its elected and appointed officials, agents, and employees, while acting within the scope of their duties as such, harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes of action of any kind or character, including the cost of defense thereof, arising in favor of Contractor's employees or third parties on account of bodily or personal injuries, death, or damage to property arising out of negligent services performed or negligent omissions of services or in any way resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of Contractor and/or its agents, employees, representatives, assigns, subcontractors, except the sole negligence of the State, under this contract.

A.
The State does not agree to this change.

	96. 
	23
	Appendix B
	Q.
Section 11, Appendix B - Contract (RFP page 23) states, “Contractor's liability for contract damages is limited to direct damages and further to no more than twice the contract amount.” Is this contract amount the individual project cost of a project procured under this Master Agreement?

A.
The State agrees to modify this sentence to read: “Contractor’s liability for damages for each Statement of Work is limited to direct damages and further to no more than twice the amount of the Statement of Work.” 

	97. 
	23
	Appendix B, Section 11
	Q.     Please modify this section as follows:
Contractor's liability for contract damages is limited to direct damages and further to no more than One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) twice the contract amount.  Contractor shall not be liable for special, incidental, consequential, punitive, or indirect damages.  Damages caused by injury to persons or tangible property, or related to intellectual property indemnification, are not subject to a cap on the amount of damages.  Contractor hereby agrees to protect, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless State from and against any and all costs, claims, demands, damages, losses, and liabilities (including attorneys' fees and costs) arising from or in connection with any third-party claim that the Contractor Services or data contained therein, when used in accordance with Offeror’s Terms & Conditions, infringe a United States patent or United States registered copyright, subject to the following: (i) State must promptly give written notice of any claim to Contractor; (ii) State must provide any assistance which Contractor may reasonably request for the defense of the claim (with reasonable out of pocket expenses paid by Contractor); and (iii) Contractor has the right to control the defense or settlement of the claim; provided, however, that the State shall have the right to participate in, but not control, any litigation for which indemnification is sought with counsel of its own choosing, at its own expense.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will not have any duty to indemnify, defend or hold harmless State with respect to any claim of infringement resulting from (1) State’s misuse of the Contractor Services; (2) State’s failure to use any corrections made available by Contractor; (3) State’s use of the Contractor Services in combination with any product or information not provided or authorized in writing by Contractor; or (4) any information, direction, specification or materials provided by State or any third-party.  If an injunction or order is issued restricting the use or distribution of any part of the Contractor Services, or if Contractor determines that any part of the Contractor Services is likely to become the subject of a claim of infringement or violation of any proprietary right of any third-party, Contractor may in its sole discretion and at its option (A) procure for State the right to continue using the Contractor Services; (B) replace or modify the Contractor Services so that they become non-infringing, provided such modification or replacement does not materially alter or affect the use or operation of the Contractor Services; or (C) terminate this Contract and refund any fees relating to the future use of the Contractor Services. The foregoing remedies constitute State’s sole and exclusive remedies and Contractor’s entire liability with respect to infringement claims or actions.
A.     The State does not agree to this change.

	98. 
	24
	Appendix B

12.4

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions
	Q.
How will a Vendor obtain approval of a deductible from the State?
A.
The State will send a letter notifying the offeror that the State has accepted its proposal and wishes to execute a contract. This letter will also request the appropriate proof of insurance and the offeror should declare deductibles with the proof of insurance. If, in the State’s opinion, the deductible is too high the State will contact the offeror to discuss the issue and possible resolutions. 

	99. 
	24-25
	Appendix B

14 Compliance with Laws &

15 Compliance with the Affordable Care Act
	Q.
We would like to point out that Federal Guidelines state that employers who have 50 or less employees are not required to provide healthcare coverage to their employees. These employers with 50 or less employees and who do not provide healthcare coverage are still in compliance with the Affordable Care Act.  Would the State agree to modify RFP15-2895P to include this Affordable Care Act requirement?
A.
Each contractor must determine how the Affordable Care Act applies and if it is compliant with the Act. These sections will remain as they are currently written.

	100. 
	24
	Appendix B, Section 15.1
	Q.    Please delete the second sentence be deleted in its entirety, as we utilize onsite individual contractors in various capacities, which will likely include the performance of services for an agency of the State.
A.    The State does not agree to this change. 

	101. 
	25
	Appendix B, Section 15.3
	Q.    Please delete “its agents or” in the first sentence, because it’s unclear what the state means by “agents.” 

A.     The State does not agree to this change.

	102. 
	26
	Appendix B, Section 19
	Q.    Please delete these sections in their entirety. If chosen by the State, we will provide services pursuant to the grant of a limited license, which does not constitute “Work Made for Hire.” No rights in the services are assigned to the State except as strictly required by the our limited license, attached separately for your review.  

A.    The State does not agree to this change. 

	103. 
	26
	Appendix B

19.4

Copy of Work Product
	Q.
Would the State please clarify this section?  What does the statement “form and media in use today” mean?  Does this imply vendors would need to upgrade to the current coding version of software used on the date of request – for example:  Visual Studio 2014 to Visual Studio 2016.  Or does this statement refer to the currently used media available – for example:  flash drives instead of floppy drives?
A.
This means the media and/or version that is in use at the time of the State’s request.

	104. 
	29
	Appendix B, Section 26
	Q.    We have submitted numerous changes to the RFP in this Q&A document. Pursuant to Section 26, we request the State Procurement Bureau provide written consent to the modifications that we request in this document. We also request the State permit the incorporation of the Contractor’s licensing terms, attached separately. 

A.    The State does not agree. 

	105. 
	29
	27.1
	Q.
Are the vendors to provide the State of Montana with our Contract Liaison contact information as requested on page 29 of the RFP? Or will the State ask for it when and if we are granted a MSA Contract?

A.
Offerors are not required to provide Contract Liaison information with the proposal response. This information will be requested when contracts are offered.

	106. 
	30
	Appendix B, Section 29
	Q.    Please delete in its entirety the final sentence of this section. 

A.    The State does not agree to this change. 

	107. 
	31
	Appendix B, Section 34.1
	Q.    Please modify this section as follows:

This contract consists of (insert number) numbered pages, any Attachments as required, Solicitation # RFP15-2895P, as amended, and Contractor's response, including Offeror’s Terms and Conditions, as amended.  In the case of dispute or ambiguity arising between or among the documents, the order of precedence of document interpretation is the same. 

A.    The State does not agree to this change. 

	108. 
	32
	36
	Q.
Does the State want the Vendor to insert our firm’s name, address and Federal ID # into the Appendix B: Contract now, or wait until the MSA Contract award?
A.
Offerors are not required to provide any contract information with the proposal response. This information will be gathered when contracts are offered.

	109. 
	33
	Appendix C
	Q.
We are assuming that the State wants two references for each category we are responding to. Is this assumption correct?
A.
This assumption is not correct. See response to Question 50.

	110. 
	33
	Appendix C
	Q.
Where in the proposal response are offerors to indicate which categories they are responding to?
A.
See response to Question 50.

	111. 
	33
	Appendix C
	Q.
Can you provide the text for the description of each of the “Computing Services Quote Group #1101 through #1116?
A.
See response to Question 50.

	112. 
	33
	Appendix C – Project Experience and References
	Q.
Can we use 2 different projects of the same customer (same Customer Reference Form)?
A.
Yes, the two project examples may be with the same customer.  Two Customer Reference Forms are required (even if both references are from the same customer). 

	113. 
	33
	Appendix C, 3rd Paragraph
	Q.
Do you mean we can submit a maximum 2 project experiences/references per Quote Group Item?
A.
There are no quote group items required in this RFP. The requirement is for submittal of two IT related projects with one reference for each.

	114. 
	33
	Appendix C, 3rd & 4th Paragraphs
	Q.
I see we can submit projects within the past 5 years. Will a project completed 4 years ago receive more points than a project received 1 year ago?
A.
No, recent projects are viewed/scored more favorably.

	115. 
	33
	Appendix C
	Q.
In 6.a. under B – Project Description and Experience, the Contractors are being asked to include “the overall budget or estimated cost” for the project reference. More often than not, the contractor is not aware of the total budget for the project and does not have a way to determine it as it is not generally published that discretely in state budgets. Would the state please consider eliminating this element from the list of items requested in the project descriptions?

A.
No, this element will not be removed as an evaluation factor.  Its inclusion is to indicate the scale of the project and allow greater credit for larger, more complex projects.  If your company is responsible, financially, for only a portion of a project, providing as much information as is available (estimates or ranges are acceptable) is preferred.

	116. 
	33
	Appendix C
	Q.
Customer Reference-Is there a preference of technology of the projects submitted to demonstrate Vendor experience?
A.
Project submissions can be anything IT related as this RFP is simply establishing a pre-qualified list of contractors capable of delivering IT related services. 

	117. 
	33
	Appendix C
	Q.
As an IT Staffing firm, are we able to use an IT Staffing contract as a project example and use case studies to show our experience with the contract?
A.
Yes.

	118. 
	33
	Appendix C
	Q.
May the 2 project references be of Staff Augmentation contracts which are not fixed price projects?
A.
Yes.

	119. 
	34
	Appendix C, Item D
	Q.
List and describe the deliverables of this project, and attach an example of one of the deliverables” – Due to the confidential nature of the project work being managed by our professionals, and various government regulations, we may not be able to provide an example. Would not providing an example:

i. Disqualify us?
ii. How many evaluation points may we not qualify for?
A.
The deliverable portion of each project is worth 10% of the overall score assignment, (1,000 points). See Section 4 for complete list of scored criteria and weighting. 

	120. 
	35
	Attachment A – Customer Reference Form
	Q.
Can we get references from our MSP (Managed Services Providers)? If we work with 1 MSP on 2 different accounts/projects (state governments), can we get 2 references on the 2 state projects from the same MSP?

A.
Yes.  See answer to Question #112.

	121. 
	35
	Attachment A – Customer Reference Form
	Q.
If the key contact of the project we worked with is no longer with that state government, can we still get reference from him/her?

A.
Yes.

	122. 
	35
	Attachment A: Customer Reference Form
	Q.
May we use previous forms from last bid? As long as the form is signed and dated by our customer, will the State accept a PDF of the Customer Reference form, so that we do not have to obtain the document in the US Mail from our customer?
A.
Yes.  Yes.

	123. 
	36
	Attachment A
	Q.
There is a reference to service categories in the Customer Reference Form.  Rating 2.B asks the customer to rate “This Company was knowledgeable in providing the services identified per the service category above.”  Since there is no service category, should this read “This Company was knowledgeable in providing the services identified above”?

A.
This is correct, a revised Attachment A is attached.

	124. 
	36
	Attachment A
	Q.
As discussed on the conference call on 27 May, all our work is with government clients and most of our clients cannot provide a reference as per their respective agency policies. Would not providing a signed reference form:

i. Disqualify us?
ii. How many evaluation points may we not qualify for?
A.
References are worth 20% of the overall score assignment (1,000 points each). See Section 4 for a complete listing of scored criteria and weighting.


INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS

It is the responsibility of each offeror to:

Follow the format required in the RFP when preparing your response.  Provide responses in a clear and concise manner.

Provide complete answers/descriptions.  Read and answer all questions and requirements.  Proposals are evaluated based solely on the information and materials provided in your written response.

Use any forms provided, e.g., cover page, budget form, certification forms, etc.

Submit your response on time.  Note all the dates and times listed in the Schedule of Events and within the document.  Late proposals are never accepted.

The following items MUST be included in the response.

Failure to include ANY of these items may result in a nonresponsive determination.

(
Signed Cover Sheet

(
Signed Addenda (if appropriate) in accordance with Section 1.6.3

(
Correctly executed State of Montana "Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality" form, if claiming information to be confidential or proprietary in accordance with Section 2.3.1.

(
In addition to a detailed response to all requirements within Section 3, Appendix C, and Attachment A, offeror must acknowledge that it has read, understands, and will comply with each section/subsection listed below by initialing the line to the left of each.  If offeror cannot meet a particular requirement, provide a detailed explanation next to that requirement.


Section 1, Introduction and Instructions



Section 2, RFP Standard Information



Section 3.1, State's Right to Investigate and Reject



Section 3, Scope of Services



Section 4, Evaluation Process



Appendix A, Standard Terms and Conditions


Appendix B, Contract

	Column 1
	Column 2
	Column 3
	Column 4
	Column 5
	Column 6
	Column 7
	Column 8

	Evaluated RFP Section
	Weight (%)
	Max Individual Requirement Points Available
	EXAMPLE Individual Requirement Points Earned
	EXAMPLE Percentage Earned
	EXAMPLE Available Aggregate Points
	EXAMPLE Aggregate Points Earned
	Comments

	Project #1
	(Determines aggregate points available (Column 6))
	(Determined from RFP Scoring Guide.)
	(Entered item - determined from proposal consensus scores)
	(Column 4 / Column 3)
	(10,000 pts * Section Weight)
	(Column 5 * Column 6)
	

	Customer
	2.5%
	3
	2
	67%
	250
	167.5
	

	Project Description
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Project Title
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Project Start and Complete Dates
	5%
	3
	2
	67%
	500
	335.0
	

	Project Scope
	2.5%
	3
	3
	100%
	250
	250.0
	

	Project Objectives
	2.5%
	3
	2
	67%
	250
	167.5
	

	Project Stakeholders
	2.5%
	3
	2
	67%
	250
	167.5
	

	Budget/Actual Cost
	5%
	3
	3
	100%
	500
	500.0
	

	Company’s Role
	5%
	3
	2
	67%
	500
	335.0
	

	Risk
	5%
	3
	2
	67%
	500
	335.0
	

	Deliverables
	10%
	3
	2
	67%
	1,000
	670.0
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	40%
	
	
	
	4,000
	2,927.5
	


ATTACHMENT A:  CUSTOMER REFERENCE FORM
· A complete and separate Customer Reference Form must be provided for each project submitted.

· Offeror must complete the first part of the Customer Reference Form, filling in the information for 

Offeror Name, the Master Contract, and the Name of Project.

· A responsible party of the organization for which the services were provided (the Customer) must provide the reference information.

· The person providing the reference must sign and date the form.

· The Customer Reference Form(s) must be submitted with the Offeror’s proposal.

· The State may contact the reference to verify the information given within the Customer Reference Form and within the proposal.  If the State finds erroneous information, points may be deducted or the proposal may be rejected.

· If all questions are not answered on the Customer Reference Form, if information is missing, or if the form is not signed, points may be deducted or the proposal may be rejected.

· If a proposal is submitted without a Customer Reference Form, points may be deducted or the proposal may be rejected.

· The State reserves the right to use other known references for the project other than those provided by the Offeror.  In this event, references will be scored using same method as Attachment A.

Customer Reference Form – Instructions

Customer Reference Form
	                                                                   Offeror Information

	Company Name (Offeror):
	Name of Project:



	Master Contract for Information Technology Services
	

	Customer Information

	Organization Name (Customer):
	Organization Address:

	Person Providing the Reference:
	Title:

	Phone Number:
	Email address:

	Reference Signature & Date:




The Person Providing the Reference, as identified above, must provide the following information.  This person must be a responsible party of the organization for which the work was performed.  This person should have comprehensive knowledge about the Project and the Offeror’s role and responsibilities within the project.

1. Briefly describe the services provided by the Company identified above.

2. Rate each of the following concerning this Company’s performance using the ratings from 0-4 below:

4 – Strongly Agree/Very Positive

3 – Agree/Positive 

2 – Neutral 

1 – Disagree/ Negative 
0 – Strongly Disagree/Very Negative 
Rating

_____
A.
This Company ensured the project deliverables were completed on time and within the agreed budget.
_____
B.
This Company was knowledgeable in providing the services identified per the services identified above.

_____
C.
The business relationship with this company was positive and cooperative, verses negative and adversarial. 

_____
D.
This Company provided open, timely communications, and was responsive to our needs and requirements.  

_____
E.
I would choose to work with this company again.



SAMPLE








"An Equal Opportunity Employer"

